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LOCATION:

This report concerns lot 354 located on the south side of Duke of Gloucester Street in Williamsburg opposite Bruton Parish Church.

OWNERS:

In 1714 John Custis was granted lot 354 along with lots 353 and 355 from the trustees of Williamsburg.
Peter Scott, carpenter, rented lot 354 from Custis family from 1733 to 1776.

In 1782 John Greenhow, merchant was the owner.

In 1788 Robert Greenhow was the owner.

Around 1820 Thomas Nelson held the property.

In 1830 Benjamin Bucktrout was owner.

In 1836 William Edloe came into the property.

In 1853 William G. Morrisett held the lot until ca. 1858.

In 1858 Talbot Sweeney was owner.

In 1870 Nathaniel and Cicero Burress bought of Sweeney.

Around 1871 the Maupin family became owners until 1929 when the property came into the hands of Williamsburg Restoration.

EXCAVATIONS:

Archaeological excavations have not been completed on this lot. Only the north portion has been excavated at this date.

IN SUMMARY:

See: pp. 9-11

APPENDIX:



lllustration #1 -----

Maps

lllustration #2 ----- Williamsburg Land Tax Records

lllustration #3 ----- Inventory and Appraisement of William Edloe Estate
List of Repairs

Report prepared by:
Mary A. Stephenson July, 1952

COLONIAL LOT 354
Block 13

LOCATION:

The location of colonial lot #354 is on the south side of Duke of Gloucester Street in Williamsburg about opposite to Bruton Parish
Church. (See: Tyler's adaptation of the College Map (17917?), lllustration #1 , Appendix).

HISTORY:

This lot was one of three lots owned by John Custis in 1714. These lots, #353, #354 and #355 were granted unto John Custis by
the feoffees or trustees of Williamsburg:

... Have granted, bargained sold demised and to farm letter unto the said John Custis—his Heirs or Assigns three certain
Lotts of ground in the said City of Williamsburgh designed in the Plott of the said City by these figures 353, 354 and 355—
with all and singular the pasturage, Woods and Waters... Signed Sealed and delivered At a Court held for James City
County the 9 t day of August 1714

Wil Robertson John Clayton and William Robertson Gent two of the Trustees for the Land appropriated for building the City
of Williamsburg Came into Court presented and acknowledged this their Lease unto John Custis Gent & it is admitted to
Record

Teste Wil Robertson Ces. Cur. (Copied from original deed, library archives, William and Mary College)

According to the Act of 1705 directing the building of Williamsburg, the owner of a lot must build a house of given dimensions within
twenty-four months or the property reverts to the trustees. Hence Custis must have built thereon by 1717 in order to hold his interest
in the property.

In the case of lot #355, east of #354, Custis erected buildings thereon which he called a "tenement." (See: House History of Lot
#355, Research Department) Another tenement of Mr. Custis's was referred to in this way: "Mr. Custis's Tenement, where Scot
lived, opposite to the Church." It is with this last named tenement, probably located on lot #354, which we are concerned with in
interpreting this report.

From 1714 to 1755 court records do not furnish any information about lot #354. However, an advertisement in the Virginia Gazette
of September 12, 1755 - which will be followed by evidence from other sources — seems to point to Peter Scott, 1carpenter,
renting this property from Custis:

Peter Scott, advertises 2 lots on the Back Street, near Col Custis's on which there is a good Dwelling House, contain 9 Six
Rooms and Closets ... likewise will be sold, at the Subscriber's Shop near the Church, sundry Pieces of Cabinet Work, of
Mahogony and Walnut, consisting of Desks, Book-Cases, Tables of various Sorts, Tools, and some Materials. Six Months
Credit will be given to those that purchase above the Value of Fifty Shillings .... Peter Scott.( Virginia Gazette , Hunter, ed.)

In 1757 it seems that Peter Scott was renting from Custis's estate:

1757 Rent of Peter Scott .......... £ 12(Custis Mss. Papers, Virginia Historical Society, photostat in Research Department)
In 1769 another item appears in the Custis Papers:

1769 Dec " 11 Rec 9 of M T Peter Scott ... fory €y T 1769 ..... £10

In 1771: A Memorandum of the tennants in the Estate of Col © Custis and the amounts of the Rents in WilliamsBurgh Peter Scott
.......... £ 10.0.-(Ibid)



It is known that James Spiers, joyner and cabinet-maker, rented lot #353 from Custis from 1744-1751 paying £ 2:10 per quarter or
about £ 10 per year. The amount paid by Spiers for rent was the same amount paid by Peter Scott. John Wheatley, carpenter or
builder, who rented the corner lot (#355) from Custis, paid £ 19.11 a year. ( /bid ) Both Wheatley and Spiers association with the
Custis lots stops after 1757, but Peter Scott, evidently, remained on the lot 2-(probably #354) until his death in 1776. (See: evidence
to follow in the report)

To sum up the above evidence concerning lot #354 and its occupants: (1) John Custis was the original owner; (2) Peter Scott rented
the "Shop near the Church" (probably facing on Duke of Gloucester Street) and possibly occupied as a dwelling the house on the
back part of the lot - which house faced upon Francis Street; (3) Scott paid £ 10 per year rent from the Custis family. A picture of the
three lots owned by the Custis family and rented to three carpenters is something like this:

Until archaeological excavations have been made on this lot it will be impossible from existing sources to make a definite statement
as to the buildings once placed on the lot.

Evidence that Peter Scott was renting from the Custis family at the time of his death is found in a letter of Edmund Randolph to
George Washington of date, January 26, 1776:

Wmsburg, Jany 26, 1776.

About 5 Days since, Mr. Custis's Tenement, where Scot lived, opposite the Church, was burnt to the Ground, by the
Negligence of some of the Soldiers, who had been quartered there. The Wind, being due South, the out-House escaped
the Flames; the Difficulty of saving the Church became thereby very great. The Country are surely answerable for this
Damage, as it accrued in their Service.... Edmund Randolph

(Emmet Collection #1135, New York Public Library, copy in Research Department)

Another reference to the fire appeared in the Virginia Gazette:

Mr. Peter Scott's old house in this City, which he had rented and lived in for 43 years, was burnt down last Sunday Night,
by accident.( Virginia Gazette , Purdie, ed., January 26, 1776)

These sources indicate that Scott lived in a Custis tenement "opposite to the Church," and that the house was an "old house"
occupied by Scott "for 43 years." This would place Scott on the property as early as 1733. As Spiers was renting lot #353 in 1744
and Wheatley was on lot #355, it seems reasonable to believe that Scott was occupying lot #354.

In 1778 General Washington and his wife, Martha (widow of Daniel Parke Custis) 1, gave full release to her son, John Parke
Custis, of all dower rights in all the plantations, including the lots in Williamsburg:

Fredg. in the State of N. York,
October 10, 1778.

Dear Sir: | have now, at your request, given my full consent to the Sale of the Lands which | hold in right of Dower in a
Tract in the County of York, to a Water Grist Mill thereon; To Lotts in the City of Williamsburg, and others in James Town
...( The Writings of George Washington, XllI,

p. 56, edited by John C. Fitzpatrick 1936)

The Frenchman's Map (1782) indicates no buildings on the lot. 2—(See: lllustration #1 for drawing from the Frenchman's Map) The
College Map (17917?) and the Bucktrout Map (1803) show "Greenhow" on the lot. ( lllustration #1 for Tyler's adaptation of the
College Map) The court records for the James City County part of Williamsburg were destroyed by fire, so a complete record of lots
in this area is impossible unless other records come to light. However, it appears that John Greenhow, father of Robert Greenhow,
was owner of the lot, and that at the death of John Greenhow in 1787, his son, Robert, came into the property. In 1786 Williamsburg
Land Tax records give "John Greenhow-----4 lots ----- £ 6.10" and in 1788 "John Greenhow to Robert Greenhow----- ----- 4 lots ----- £
50" (Photostat copy in Research Department) A look at the College Map (17917?) shows that Greenhow owned four lots in the city:
two were #354 and the lot south of it; and two were #159 and #160. 1(See: College Map, lllustration #1 )

In advertising his father's property for sale, Robert Greenhow gave this description:

WILLIAMSBURG, September 24, 1787


file:///DigitalLibrary/va-gazettes/VGSinglePage.cfm?issueIDNo=76.P.07

Agreeable to the last will and testament of Mr. JOHN GREENHOW, late of this city, will be sold at public sale, on Thursday
the 18 of October.

... will be sold, all the real and personal estate of the deceased, (except the store Goods) in and about the city of
Williamsburg, consisting of a large and commodious Dwelling House on the main street, 6 or 8 Houses and Lots on the
back street ...

ROBERT GREENHOW, sole executor.

( Virginia Gazette and Independent Chronicle, Dixon, editor)

We interpret this advertisement to mean that the dwelling house and store were located on lots #159 and #160. The "6 or 8 Houses
and Lots on the back street" may be the houses on the lot to the rear of #354, also owned by Greenhow. The lot faces on Francis
Street, "a back street" in relation to the main or Duke of Gloucester Street.

Sometime before 1820 the property was conveyed to Thomas Nelson of Yorktown. The Williamsburg Land Tax records indicate it
thus: "1820 Thomas Nelson York Town-----1 lot ----- $200 This was held formerly as part of Ro: Greenhow's property." (From copy in
Research Department) Thomas Nelson held the lot until 1830 when Benjamin E. Bucktrout became the owner "Via Charles A.
Wingfield Marshall of the superior court of chancery for W ™S burg district; formerly charged to T. Nelson." (Ibid) In 1835 the
property passed to Robert G. Richardson "Via Benjamin E Bucktrout" and in 1836 William Edloe was the owner: "1 lot ----- $100 Via
Robert G. Richardson who purchased of Benjamin E. Bucktrout." ( /bid ) Further evidence to substantiate Edloe's ownership of the
lot — "formerly the property of Robert Greenhow" — is found in a deed to the adjoining property (the Custis-Maupin lot, #355). In
July 1838 Wade Mountfortt by deed to John M. Maupin mentions the western boundary of lot #355 as "a lot formerly the property of
Robert Greenhow lately purchased by Benjamin E. Bucktrout, and now belonging to William Edloe..."(Ms. Deed, Research
Department)

In 1845 Edloe gave a mortgage on the property to Vest & Company. The description was: "a House and Lot in W ™S burg bounded
North by the Main street — South by Street — East by J. M. Maupin & West by G. Durfey .. (Southall Papers Mss, Legal Cases
and Estates James City County, Folder 140 (May 23, 1845); William and Mary College Archives)

The Southall Papers show that in 1846 William Edloe had repairs made to his property by Johnson Sands, carpenter, amounting to
$34.86: "hewing 2 sills for Porch," "Mending floor," "spliceing 6 sleepers," "25 feet of plank for floor," "making Kirb for Step at Post
office," "Sawing 363 feet of scantling," "Sawing 826 feet of 2 In plank," "Hewing 2 sills 20 feet long." (Folder 142) The same year
(1846) Edloe paid S. T. Bowman "to putting up stove and mending plastering," "To whitewashing room," "To 59 yards of plastering,”
"to morter to build post office steps," &c. 2—( lllustration #3 for complete accounts)

An inventory and appraisement of Edloe's property filed by Maupin, his executor, and Southall, administrator de boni non, with the
will annexed, dated July 7, 1851, lists "Dwelling house and lot-----$2000 and House & lot on back street-----$300. Not sold on 7 July
1851 for want of bidder."(Southall Papers, Folder 140, Legal Cases and Estates, James City County) The inventory is given by
rooms: Dining Room, Parlor, Front Chamber, Back Chamber, Back Room, Office-------- total inventory $4930.92 %; names of
purchasers of items also listed. (See: lllustration #3 for complete account)

In 1853 William G. Morrisett was the owner of the lot: "1 lot $1400 lot and buildings $1800 Formerly charged to William Edloe's Est."
This was the same valuation carried by Edloe. (See: lllustration #2 for complete tax report)

In 1856 Morrisett advertised his real estate as "situated in front of the Episcopal Church, and between the lots of Mrs. Maupin and
the Rev. Mr. Wilmer, consisting of a LOT, WITH DWELLING-HOUSE, STORE and sundry out Houses on the Main Street, & LOT
AND DOUBLE TENEMENTED house on Back street, in rear of the one on Main......"( Williamsburg Virginia Gazette, J. Hervey
Ewing, ed., June 8, 1856)

Prior to the Civil War (in 1858), Talbot Sweeney 1 had become the owner with lot and buildings valued at $2500. (lbid) As a result
of a suit brought by Mrs. Susan Newman c. 1866 Sweeney had to sell the property on June 27, 1871. In 1870 Nathaniel and Cicero
Burress 2—bought from Sweeney at $2500. Sweeney described the property as "a large commodious house and lot with
appurtenances," and that the total rent was $360 annually. (See: Chancery Suits, Box 30, James City Court House, Williamsburg)

Cicero Burress entered into articles of agreement with John C. Tilford on June 27, 1871 agreeing to sell the property for $2400 —
the lot bounded as follows: "North by the main street, East by M " Maupin's lot, South by Crawley's lot and west by the Parsonage,
and being the same formerly owned by Talbot Sweeney, and which was this purchased at public auction by said Burress under a
decree of the Circuit Court for the City of W ™S burg and county of James City, in the case of Newman & others against Sweeney &
others ... And in as much as, the said Houses located on the said lot are now insured for twenty five hundred dollars, in the
Liverpool & London Insurance Company, the said John C. Tilford doth further covenant to keep the same regularly insured for the
benefit of the said C. Burress, for the same sum of $2500, in the said company, or in some other good insurance company (until the
property is fully paid for) ..." (Cole Ms Papers, Miscellaneous grouping, William and Mary College)

Mr. John S. Charles has this to say of the houses on lot #354 as he remembered them during the Civil War period:



The next lot east [of the Rectory] now has on it two dwellings. There was in 1861 on this lot a two story frame building with
a one story addition on the west end. The main building had a porch on the front and the one story part had also a door
opening toward the street. In front there was a flower yard enclosed by a neat picket fence with gate for each front door. On
the eastern end there was a double gate opening into an ample back yard where there was a very large frame house, very
old, with its roof projecting over in front supported by posts set in the ground. The house extended nearly the entire width
of the lot and was used as a kitchen and servants' quarters. It was destroyed by fire not many years ago.( Recollections of
Williamsburg , p. 30, copy in Research Department)

Mrs. Victoria M. Lee's description of this house varies somewhat:

West of the Maupin house, near where the house now called the Galt Cottage stands, but much nearer to the street, stood
a frame story and a half house which had a small platform, and one entrance on Main Street. This house was owned by Mr.
Talbot Sweeney who made his home there. The small restored shop, now called the Cole Shop, which looked then as it
looks now, stood just west of Mr. Talbot Sweeny's house.(Williamsburg in 1861 by Mrs. Victoria M. Lee, p. 19, copy in
Research Department.)

Mr. Charles refers to the shop known as the "Cole Shop" as "The single story house, on the adjoining lot, now used as a Millinery
Store, ... In 1861 it was used as a shoe and hat store. The Hat Shop in the front with the shoe shop in rear room. At one time it was
used as the post office. A fence enclosed the lot with a gate and narrow alley-way leading to small yard in the rear."(Recollections of
Williamsburg, p. 30)

Records have not revealed the date at which the Maupin family came into lot #354. However, the will of Catherine M. Maupin,
widow of John M. Maupin, dated April 16, 1879, reveals that her son, Samuel J. Maupin, was bequeathed "the building in my yard
known as the office with a lot of land commencing on the Main Street of Williamsburg in line with my dwelling house and Extending
on the same line to my garden fence..." (Williamsburg and James City County Court Records, Will Book I, p. 313) In the light of
references by Mr. Charles and Mrs. Lee to a small house located on the lot around this period, it seems reasonable to believe the
Maupins had come into the property after the Burress and Tilford families. Further title to the property until 1929 when it came into
the hands of Colonial Williamsburg, can be found in the chain to title, Accounting Department, Colonial Williamsburg.

In 1930 the James Galt Cottage was moved from the grounds of the Eastern State Hospital to this lot. The Galt Cottage faced upon
Ireland Street according to the recollections of Mr. John S. Charles.

IN SUMMARY:

Lot #354 was one of three lots conveyed by the trustees of Williamsburg to John Custis in 1714. In order to hold his interest in the
property according to the Act of 1705, Custis must have built a house thereon. Indirect evidence seems to point to Peter Scott,
carpenter, as renter of the Custis lot from around 1733 to 1776. In 1755 the Virginia Gazette carried a notice of Scott's stating that
his "Shop near the Church" held "sundry Pieces of Cabinet Work, of Mahogony and Walnut, consisting of Desks, Book-Cases,
Tables of various Sorts, Tools and some Materials." Scott also advertised his two lots "on the Back Street, near Col. Custis's on
which there is a good Dwelling House, ..." A short time after Scott's death the house known as "Mr. Custis's Tenement, where Scot
lived, opposite to the Church, was burnt to the ground..." The Frenchman's Map (1782) indicates no buildings on the lot. This fact
would lend support to the belief that it was on this lot that Scott's tenement was located and later burned. It appears that John
Greenhow, merchant, was owner of the property in 1782, followed by his son, Robert Greenhow, in 1788. There were several
owners of the property before William Edloe acquired possession in 1836 "Via Robert G. Richardson who purchased of Benjamin
Bucktrout." When John M. Maupin acquired lot 355 (east of 354) the property was bounded on the west by "a lot formerly the
property of Robert Greenhow lately purchased by Benjamin E. Bucktrout, and now belonging to William Edloe." The College Map
(17917?) and the Bucktrout Map (1803) both show "Greenhow" on the lot. By 1851 the valuation as given in the Land Tax Records
for Williamsburg has risen from $100 to $2000 indicating that building was done within that period or additions made to houses then
on the property. By 1856 on the property was a "Dwelling-House, Store and sundry out Houses on the Main Street, & Lot and
Double Tenemented house on the Back street, in rear of the one on Main." Mr. John S. Charles in "Recollections of Williamsburg"
during the Civil War period noted that there were two dwellings on the lot, both of frame: one "a two story building with one story
addition to the west"; the other "a very large frame house, very old, with its roof projecting over in front supported by posts set in the
ground. The house extended nearly the entire width of the lot and was used as a kitchen and servant's quarters. It was destroyed
by fire not many years ago." In 1870 Talbot Sweeney described his property as "a large commodious house and lot with
appurtenances." In 1871 the property is described by the new owner, John C. Tilford, as bounded "North by the main street, East by
Mrs. Maupin's lot, South by Crawley's lot and west by the Parsonage, and being the same formerly owned by Talbot Sweeney, ..."
Sometime after 1871 John M. Maupin who owned the property east, came into lot 354. Records have not revealed the date the lot
was acquired. However, in 1879, the will of Catherine M. Maupin, widow of John M. Maupin, indicates that the Maupins were
owners. She bequeathed to her son, Samuel J. Maupin, "the building in my yard known as the office with a lot of land commencing
on the Main Street of Williamsburg in line with my dwelling house and extending on the same line to my garden fence..." In the light
of references of Mr. Charles and Mrs. Lee, old citizens of Williamsburg, who recall a house on the lot at this period, it seems



reasonable to believe the Maupins were owners of the lot after 1871. Until archaeological excavations are completed for lot #354 it
will be impossible to make any definite statements as to the exact locations of houses on the lot or the approximate age of the
houses. Further title to the property, after 1929 when Colonial Williamsburg became the owners with certain restrictions, can be
found in the Accounting Department, Colonial Williamsburg.

Mary A. Stephenson
July, 1952

Footnotes

A 1. Scott was living in the city as early as 1748. (York County Records, Wills, Inventories, Book XX, p. 125)

A 2.1n 1777 an account of Robert Carter of Nomoni Hall notes that Carter owed Peter Scott for cabinet work: R, Carter D "to the Estate of
Peter Scott, Cabinetmaker, deceased, late of the City of Wmsburg— for 2 Card Tables-1 Side board Table — 4 Picture Frames.
(Mss Day Book 1776-1778, vol. 14, p. 146, Chauvenet Collection)

A 1. Daniel Parke Custis had inherited the Williamsburg lots from his father, John Custis. As widow of Daniel Parke Custis, Martha Custis
held her right which was released when her son, John Parke Custis, came of age.

A 2. The fact that there were no buildings on the lot in 1782 would add strength to the belief that Peter Scott's buildings had been on this lot.
The fire which had destroyed these buildings had occurred in 1776, as formerly noted in the report.

A 1. Lots 159 and 160 were the site of Greenhow's store and dwelling house at the time of his death in 1787. Robert Greenhow lived thereon
afterwards. (See: House Histories of lots 159 and 160, Research Department) Biographical material on Robert Greenhow can be found in
Tyler's Encyclopedia of Virginia Biography, 11, 215-216)

A 1. Durfey was owner of lot #353 in 1845. See: House History of lot #353, Research Department.

A 2. William Edloe was postmaster from ca. 1841-1850. See: folder 142 Southall Papers. Edloe sold school books, pencils, oranges, candy,
apples, claret &c. He undoubtedly added to the house as the valuation changes from $200 in 1832 to $1800 on lot and buildings in 1852

A 1. "Talbot Sweeny is now the proprietor by purchase of Mrs. Newman's House on the main street opposite to the Church, & formerly the
domain of ... Wm. Edloe, deceased..."(William and Mary College Papers, Uncat. Ms: Letter of S. S. Griffin to James L. C. Griffin dated
Williamsburg, Sept. 15, 1858)

A 2. In the articles of agreement of date June 27, 1871 between C. Burress and John C. Tilford, the property is bounded thus: "North by the
main street, East by M " Maupin's lot, South by Crawley's lot and west by the Parsonage, and being the same formerly owned by Talbot
Sweeney, and which was this purchased at public auction by said Burress under a decree of the Circuit Court for the City of Wmsburg ..."
(Cole Ms Papers, Misc., William and Mary College)

lllustration #1
Lot 354
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FROM FRENCHMAN'S MAP 17827



PHOTOSTAT COPY OF THE WILLIAMSBURG PLAT IN "WILLIAMSBURG,
THE OLD COLONIAL CAPITOL" BY LYON G. TYLER

Illustration #2
Lot 354

Williamsburg Land Tax Records
Microfilm, Research Department, from Ms. in Virginia State Archives

1782 John Greenhow 4 £6.10
lots
4
1786 John Greenhow £6.10
lots
Robert h i h
1788 obert Greenhow via John £ 50
Greenhow
4
1789 1800 Robt. Greenhow lot $33.20
ots
6
1817 Robert Greenhow $131.--
lots
1818 FGreenhow held only one lot
in the city]
1
1820 Thomas Nelson's Est ot $200 This was formerly held as a part of Robert Greenhow's property

1 $200 Via Charles Wingfield, Marshall of the superior court of chancery for Wmsburg district;

1830 Benjamin E. Bucktrout
lot  formerly charged to T. Nelson

1835 Robert G. Richardson lot $200 via Benjamin E. Bucktrout

1836 William Edloe I1ot $200 via Robert G Richardson who purchased of Benjamin E. Bucktrout
1852  William Edloe I1ot bldgs $1400 lot & bldgs $1800

1853 William G. Morrisett I1ot bldgs $1400 lot & bldgs $1800 Formerly charged to William Edloe's Est.
1858 Susan M. Newman |1ot Lot & buildings $2500

1859 Talbot Sweeney |1ot Lot & buildings $2500 Formerly charged to Susan Newman

1870 Nath & C. Burress I1ot Lot & buildings $2500

Illustration #3

Mss. Library, College of William and Mary

Southall Papers. Folder 140-143. [Paper below in Folder 140]
Legal cases and estates. James City County

Edloe (William) estate. 1832-1851. 284 pieces.

Inventory, appraisement, and account of Sales of the Real and Personal Estate of William Edloe deceased, undisposed of by John
M. Maupin, his executor, made this 7: th July 1851. by George W. Southall administrator de bonis non with the Will annexed.



Inventory and Appraisement

Appraised

Account of Sales

Values Sales
PROPERTY APPRAISED NAMES OF PURCHASERS
Real Estate.
Dwelling house and lot 2000 00 :iz;zcr"d on 7 July 1851 for want of
House & lot, on back street 300 00 D°..D°
...[Slaves sold - 6]
Dining Room
1 Side Board 8 00 Bolling V. Pierce 8 00
Secretary & Book Case 10 00 Peter T. Powell 10 00
Table N °1 10 00 M 'S- Edloe (retained by her as widow)
D°.N°2 10 00 Lucius W. Edloe 500
1 Set of Tea China 1200 Mrs. Edloe 1200
1 Doz: Table Spoons 2400 Geo: W. Southall @$1:05 per oz 2276
8 Tea Spoons & 3 pieces 6 00 D°..D°..@$1:.07D° 724
1 Silver Ladle 400 Lucius W. Edloe @$1:25 D ° 581
1 p "Sugar Tongs 250 D°..D°..@%1: 160
1 Selt Castors 500 Geo: W. Southall 250
2 Glass Pickle Stands 100 Wm: A. Warren 200
2 Glass Lamps .75 D°..D° .. 50
3 Odd Decanters .. 50 Parkes Slater @ 7 'z cts each .. 23
1 Glass Salver .. 50 John A. Jones 178%
12 Custard Glasses 100 Geo: W. Southall .. 76
4 Glass [?] Preserve Dishes .. 50 John A. Jones @ 6 Y4 cts each .25
1 Cork Screw & nutmeg Grater .. 25 M. I. Smead L12%
2 Salt Stands .25 Geo: W. Southall @ 13c .. 26
[Total of the first page] $4521 25V, 35509 22
[Inventory continued on second page]
2 large Waiters 150 John R. Armistead @35c ea .. 70
7 Waiters 100 Wm: A. Warren @ 10c .70
1 Britannia Tea Pot L 12% David Smith .20
1 Egg Boiler .75 Geo: W. Southall .37 1/6
1 Black Bottle Ro: Anderson .. 06 V4
1 Tea Cady .25 Parkes Slater .06 %
Physic Scales & © .. 50 Lucius W. Edloe .. 40
2 Blue Pitchers with Tops 150 D°...D°..@70c 140
1 White D °© YA Mr. Jayner .. 36
1 Yellow D ° .24 Ro: Anderson L12%
Lot Table Mats .25 D°...D° L12%
Lot of Dinner China 500 D°.D° 190
2 Dishes Liverpool China 100 D°.D° 100
1 large Bowl .. 25 Lucius W. Edloe .25
1 Tureen & Dish Cover .. 25 Ro: Anderson .. 01




3 Brass Candlesticks 100 M. J. Smead @ 30c .. 90

1 p " plated Candlesticks, Snuffers and tray .. 50 Ro: Anderson .25

2 p " Snuffers L2 Wm: W. Ware .. 18

Lot knives & forks & Box 150 John R. Armistead .. 46

1 Doz: Chairs Cane bottom 6 00 Geo: W. Southall 52¢ 624

11 Bottles Champaign Wine 6 00 John A. Jones @ 40c 440

Lot of old Glass in Side Board L 127% Lucius W. Edloe .. 06 Y4

1 Tin Dish Cover L 12% Leroy 127

1 Crumb Brush . 18% Wm: A. Warren .. 50

1 p " Carpet L 12% Ro: Anderson .06 %

2 Stools .. 50 D°..D°..22ea: .44

3 Slates .. 50 Geo: F. Morrison @ 20c .. 60

Journal of House of Delegates 200 Geo: W. Southall .25

Lot of old Books 500 Jones Hellen 325

Parlor

1 Mantle Glass 500 Edward B. Lindsey 350

2 Doz: Maple Chairs 18 00 John B. Christian @$1:85 1110

2 Rocking D °© 300 John R. Armistead @%$2:25 450

2 Lounges 500 Geo W. Southall @$2:65 530

[;T(t;l,]m the second page; inventory of parlor continues $67 68 % $49 79 4

1 Sofa 1500 Geo: W. Southall $1145

1 p " Shovel & tongs & Poker 200 D°..D° 240

1 Candle Stand 400 D°..D° 310

1 Astral Lamp 250 John B. Christian 155

1 p "Curtains & fixture N © 1 6 00 Ro: Anderson 300

1D°..D°..N°2 6 00 D°..D° 300

1 Passage Lamp 350 John R. Armistead 350

1 Rug 350 John B. Christian 270

1 Carpet N °1 12 00 Ro: H. Armistead 610

3 Cohonk Shells L3772 M "Withers ... Paid ..50

1 Carpet N °2 (brown) 8 00 John B. Christian 715

Front Chamber

1 Bed, Matress, Bolster, Pillows, Bedstead and bedding 40 00 M ™ Edloe (retained by widow)

1 Bureau 10 00 D°..D° 10 00

Back Chamber

1 Bedstead ... N°1 250 Allen Lindsey 270

Bed & underbed, Bolster & Pillows 2500 Lucius W. Edloe 2200

1 p " Sheets, linnen Pillow Cases, and Bolster Case 300 D°.D° 275

1 p "Blankets 200 D°..D° 155

1 Counterpin white 200 D°..D° 200

1 Single Bedstead 300 Geo: W. Southall 270
[Geo: W. Southall]

Single Bed & under Bed, Bolster and Pillows 14 00 D°..D° 700

1 p "Linnen Sheets, pillow Case and Bolster Case 250 D°..D° 210

1 Counterpin 150 D°..D° 205




1 p " Single Blankets 200 Parkes Slater 195

1 Mattress (Moss.) 200 Geo: F. Morrison 215

2 P " Cotton Sheets 100 D°..D° 125

1 Counterpin 150 D°..D° .97
1 Blanket .75 Thomas Lindsey ... Paid ..65

1 Bolster Case L3772 Lucius W. Edloe .25

1 p " Curtains N ° 1 fringed 180 Geo: W. Southall .. 40
1p"D°...N°2 without fringe .75 D°..D° .. 40

1 Bureau 6 00 Bolling V. Pierce 600

1 p " Curtains Geo. F. Morrison W37
[Total at end of 3rd page] $ 184 55 $11370
1 Looking Glass N ° 1 150 Bolling V. Pierce 146
1D°..D°.2 .75 Geo: F. Morrison .. 38

1 Bureau Cover Bolling V. Pierce .. 20

1 Wash stand Mahogany 100 Ro: Anderson .. 95
1D°..D°..N°.1 150 Lucius W. Edloe 100
1D°..D°..N°.2 100 M " Withers 115

1 Walnut Table 100 W. W. Ware .25

1 Pitcher & tooth brush stand .75 Ro: Anderson ..60

1 Arm Chair 500 Geo: W. Southall 350
Back Room

1 Bedstead 300 Geo: F. Morrison 362 %
Bed, Mattrass, Bolster & Pillows 20 00 Geo: W. Southall 1200
1 p " Sheets & Pillow & Bolster Cases 150 D°..D° .83

1 Counterpin White .. 50 D°..D° .95

1 p "Blankets 200 D°..D° 100

1 Cumfort [?]11 50 D°..D° 100

1 Bureau 6 00 D°..D° 7 00
Cover .25 D°..D° .25
Looking Glass 150 Geo: F. Morrison 130

1 Wardrobe 500 Peter F. Powell 1200
Wash Stand 150 Bolling V. Pierce 250
Basin Ewer .75 D°..D° 105
Shovel & Tongs & Poker. .75 D°..D° ..65

2 Spittoons .25 D°..D° .. 50

1 p ® Carpeting L 12% Geo: W. Southall .25

1 Cricket L 127% Peter T. Powell . 18%
1 Candle Stand .50 Geo: W. Southall 115
In Office

Bedstead 250 Peter T. Powell 300
Bed, Mattrass, Pillow & Bolster 20 00 Sherod T. Bowman 1300
1 p " Sheets, Pillow & Bolster Case 150 Bolling V. Pierce 102

1 p "Blankets 200 Sherod T. Bowman 150

1 Counterpin .. 50 Lucius W. Edloe 199

1 Table .. 50 George W. Southall ..65

1 Desk 100 D°..D° 200




1 Curtain 212 % Edward B. Lindsay .06 %
1 Show Case 300 Geo: W. Southall 205

1 Desk .75 G. Durfey 130
[Total at end of 4th page] $88 62 Y% $82 80
1 Map of Virginia .. 50 Geo: F. Morrison .06 %
4 Odd Chairs .. 25 Geo: W. Southall .25
Bed Steps .. 50 D°..D° 25
1 old Sofa 200 D°..D° 400

1 old Table .25 D°..D° .12

1 Tin Safe 250 John Coke 100

1 Stone Pitcher (no handle) L 12% Geo: W. Southall .. 05

1 Flour Chest 300 D°..D° 300

1 p " Scales and Weights 200 Sherod T. Bowman 200
Cake Pan and Contents L 12% Thomas Lindsey .. 08
Morter and Pestle 100 John Coke 300
Lock, Chisel, & molasses Gate L 12% G. Durfey L127%
4 Inkstands .06 % Ro: Armistead .06 "%
1 p " Scales & Weights N °©2 .. 50 John Coke .25

3 Panes Window Glass .25 Ro: Armistead L7

2 Tin Canisters .25 John Coke ..40

1 Cake Pan & lot tin Shapes .. 25 Geo: W. Southall .. 01

1 lot Glass Jars (4) & 3 Bottles & © .. 50 Jones Heller ..55

1 p "Lemon Squeezers L2 John Coke L12%
3 old © ol ® Shovels 212 % George W. Southall .07
Keg and Freezer .. 50 Jones Heller .. 16

1 old Table .. 25 Wm. W. Ware .. 40

1 Barrell Stand L 127% Peter T. Powell ..45

1 Bar Iron L12% D°..D° .25

1 Moveable Dairy 6 00 Geo: W. Southall 705

1 Trunnel [sic] Bedstead .. 25 Lucius W. Edloe .. 75

1 Copper Kettle 500 Geo: W. Southall 6 85

2 Tubbs large 100 D°..D° .75

2 Buckets & 1 /2 Bus: Measure .75 S. T. Bowman .25

1 Tin Kitchen .. 50 Geo: W. Southall .. 05

1 Furnald [sic] .. 50 Tho ® Lindsay .92

1 Piggin L 12% S. T. Bowman .. 03

1 p"And Irons .75 Geo: W. Southall .50

1 p "Waffle Irons .. 50 John Coke .. 40

2 Spiders .. 50 S. T. Bowman .32

1 Dutch Oven & top and Pan 100 Ro: Armistead .. 90
1Pot..N°1 100 M ' Edloe (retained by widow)

1D°..N°2 .. 50 S. T. Bowman .43

6 Demijohns & 3 Jugs 250 D°..D° .. 50
Lott Bottles .. 50 Geo: W. Southall .14

1 Franklin Stove .. 50 S. T. Bowman 100
2 bbl Chalk 100 Geo: W. Southall .25




1 Bandl [sic] Stand .. 50 Peter T. Powell 100
Buggy & harness 3000 Wm: W. Ware 3125
[Total at end of fifth page] $68 81 V4 $7017 V2
[Total of all 5 pages at top of 6th page]

[Appraised Values] [Sales]
2509 22

1st Page $ 4521 25. 1st Page i
4

2 Page 67 68 % 2 Page 49 V479

3 Page 184 55 3 Page 11370

4 Page 8862 % 4 Page 82 80

5 Page 68 81 4

$ 493092 %, $ 2825 69

Geo: W. Southall, adm ©°F & €

[Signed by three appraisers, appointed by the Circuit Court for the City of Williamsburg and County of James City on July 7, 1851.
Th. O. Cogbill, Samuel F. Bright, and Peter T. Powell.

[Recorded in the Circuit Court of the City of Williamsburg and James City County, May 22, 1852]

Mss. Library, College of William and Mary Southall Papers. Folders 140-143. [This paper belongs in Folder 142] Legal cases and
estates. James City County
Edloe (William) estate. 1832-1851. 284 pieces.
M " William Edloe 1846 To Johnson Sands [Edloe, William 1846.] & ©
Augt To order paid Connelly 10 25
To hewing 2 sills for Porch 9/-putting under 28 feet of sill (9 4 500
To Mending floor 1/6 28 feet of facie [sic] @ 3c 1.09

To Spliceing 6 sleepers @ 9 9 each. 24 feet of scantling @ 2¢ 1. 23

To 6 feet of 2 Inch plank to splice Sleepers @ 3c .. 18
To 25 feet of plank for floor & facie @ 2c .. 50
To Making Kirb for Step at Post office & Timber 38

To Hewing 224 feet for thick plank @ 6/-per hundred 2.24
To Sawing 826 feet of 2 In plank @ 6/- 8. 26
To Sawing 363 feet of scantling @ 7/6 4.53
To hewing 2 sills 20 feet long 8 by 10 1.20

$34.86

[No endorsement on back]
(Ibid)
M "Edloe To. S. T. Bowman Dr. 1846

1846

June 6  to putting up. stove and mending plastering $ 1.75

6 to whitewashing room -6/- 1.00
July 16  to mending underpining 1.00
Oct 5 to 59 yards of plastering at 4 d 3:67

5 to mending D ° - 3/- .. 50



5 to morter to build post office steps 3/- .. 50
Cr to my account Due W ™ Edloe $8:42

S T Bowman

[Endorsed on back]
S. T. Bowman

alc is W M Edloe

W M Edloe

Act. $8.42

MAUPIN SHOP - NO. 21 (1940 Map Folder)
Block 13, Colonial Lot 354

No definite records relating to the ownership or use of this small shop have been found. It seems probable that the ground upon
which it stands formed a part of the lot which adjoined it on the east, which during the early years of the nineteenth century was in
the possession of the Maupin family. (See Recollections, by Mr. Charles, Mrs. Victoria Lee, and Mrs. Vandegrift. pp. 29, 79-80, 94.)
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